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THE LESSHORE KENDALL KESTDENCE | 60 -DoBE
On Brosdway, in Uobbs Ferry, Westchester (o., New York _ ;- w

Location and Tresent Ownership

This house, owned and o§CuQied by Mr. Messuore Kendell, stands
on the east side of Broadway, the zmin'ﬁorthfand-ﬁputh avenue of
travel, formerly czlled the Albany Post Road,; at Dobbs Ferry, New York,':_..
overlocking the Hudson River near the s authern and of the wide :
stretch of water called Tappen Zes. It is about seven miles north
of the New York City lire.

Date and First Owners

The lund on which the village stands was part of the Manor of
Philipsburgh, granted in 1893 by r&yal patent. sigred by Governor
Andros to Frederick Philipse. The Irdians (iloheguns) had slready
released their titles by sales to him at various tises more than
ten yvears before. -He died in 1702 und was succeeded as Lord of
the lianor by “is grandson, Frederick, the cnild of hls eldest son,
Philip, who died in 1700C. Young Frederick was only seven years
old hen his grandfather died. Sorn in 1685, he entered into bis
inheritance in 1718. He died in 1751 at the age of 586, and was
succeeded by his son, Col. Frederick Philipse, the‘third and Yast
Lord of the Manor of Pnilipsburgh. It appsars likely that the old

farmhouse which comprises the esrliest unit of the vresent residsnce

gt Dobbs Ferry was built in thut outlaying section of the great landed

estate between 1690 und 1700, by the first Frederick ¥hilipse. Hav-
irg served Lhe West Irdia Co. as architect~builder in Stuyvesant?s
time and later, it is likely that he personally designed the house. . _
Thilipse, the great-grandson. had his
Due to hig hatin g Leerwa ‘)Torj; dg‘;in% *he Re volubiar, Frederi Gicy lands
P

and houses, including the Munor House in Youkers, wewre forfeited by

hls attainder under the Confiscation act of 1779. They were sold
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for exall sums to his Torosr tenants under a presmption clause in | -

the general act passed by the HNew York legislature VNay 12, 1781,
relaving to the s«le of confiscated estates; and Philip Livingston
#ith two others acquired the Dobbe Ferry land, by inderture from
the Comcissioners of Forfeiture, Oct. 10, 1785. Livingston.took
title to the whole of it on April 1, 1796; sand in 1806 wade a large
and stutely two-storied addition to the three-storied old farmhouse.
House and lands were transferred to his son, Peter Van 3rugh Livingston,
by a partition deed on April 30, 1824, and in 1830 he began to sell off
ssall parcels of the estate. He sold the house and its ample grounds
to Stephen aArcher, whose daughter murried Dr. Josewh Hasbrouck.
Title passged to him upon her death, and %Wr. Kendall acqg.ired it from
Hesbrouck's widovy and others in 1916.when advertised Tor sanle.

The foregoing facts are derived frow authorities cited by CZhonnard
& Spooner, by Bolton, and Scharf in their historiass of Testchester
County; from Eberleints

The Manors & Historiec domes of the Hudson Valley
{1924), pp. 85-85;

Paul Hollistor's Famous Country Houses; und an snonymous pamghlet
relating to the town's real estute, entitled

=

Dolbs Terry in History (in the ¥. Y. Public Library).

The Earliest Jing & Typical Colonisl Farshouse

The oldsst unit, the original or central portisn of the sresert
sauposite etiucture, milt by the distingulished burgher Prilirse,
hae passed ;ractically unaltsrsd inte the wossession of the Livingstons
and luter owners to ocur own time. It is & good exsw.ple of whut the

seventeenth century farmhouse wag, with long sweeping roof and dormer

windows. #lice Lor=e Barle, in Colonial Duys in 0ld Yew York (1893),
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describes this tyoe of ﬁouse with partl cular care.  Kr. Walter D. .  .${; :

Cheambers, architect, who undertook the restoration of this residence

for its present owner in 1918, and » wublithed sn sccount of it in -

The Guarterly Bulletin of the Westclester
County Hist. G0Ce, VIL; 49-58 (April, 1931),

sentions the almost characteristic appearance of the Dutch-English
Colonial houses in tre Hudson River Valléy: - "Low ceili ngs, & huge
kitchen~living-room fireplace, with & buke~oven included as part of
‘the masonry chimney pier, a long sweeping.roof with dormers covering
the two-storied verandah, the house placed with its long front fucing
sOJth ~--these features are to he foﬁnd in many of the more important
farmbhouses of that time," rot only in that loculity but also in the
settlements on Long'Island, in the ¢ohawk Vulley, and elsevhere.

Restoring the 0Older Wings

"ihen the present owner bhought the place, writes lir. Chambers,

"the house wus in a deplorable stute of neglect and decay--almost ready

%o collapse. Juny framing timbers necessury to its support were so

rotten that L ey were structurally worthless and “ad to be replaced.

Sowe of tre two-story columné on the south side of the Dutceh wing, whose .

business it was to sup;ort the roof, were actually hanging suspendad

froa the roof, having rotted through at their bases, so thut tley

swayed in the wind, hung by toeir to?s to the roof beass." Ir.

Aesiraé . :

Yondull Jeseeddeod that the place be restored drside and out to a hab-

itable staite, and yat thut the archiltectural charscter of the Dutch-

Brnglish wing and sl=o that of the early Federal wing should he retained.
A4s described by Nir. Chambers, the umterials used for construeting

"the Dutchmen's wing" were such as could be found at =and. "Stons,

briclk, wood and pluster were employed logleally and thriftily, end in
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cerﬁéin places one finds that naive purtition wall built of ouk
uprights connactad by'“n?izonta. oake§ bhillets, Tilled in with clay
or rud Y
The restoruticon of the old dining rooa in that wing was done with an
. ,
axe. "The fine adzed oak bemus of the ¢eiling had been concealed by a
flimsy Yath snd nplaster covering, wnd the greut firepluce, seven feot
“igh by eight feet wide, with the old crune in one corner und the bake-
oven in the other, hud been hidden by a chweap late-Victorian 'kRastlake!
mentel, surrounding & dinky Tireplace wbout two feet syuare."
Livingston's frank departure from the Dubtch typs in planning his
new wing "“is forgivable," .ir. Chambers observes, "for he wanted higher
ceilings and rooms sore zpucious than could be w.de to conform to such

& type." Tre Charleston houses of the eighteenth century, ".ith
Vi & ¥

F'ald

helr two-storied galleries fucing west, tlelr 'igh cellings, and

generous well-proportioned roocs,” perhans are what he nad in mind.
In building this new addition, the architect of 1206 (orobubly
Livingston hiuaself) was confronted .ith the problem of naki-z a single
nain sbairears which would serve bhoth wings, &nd Mr. Chawbszrs found
that Tivirgston red solved it irncorrectly; for, "if one wented to wount
from the ground f'loor to the bed rooms in the Duter wing, me rad to
truvel severwl feet Xigher to the bed roow fleor over the rew wing, and
then co.e down 2gsin.’ Ip the restoration s/r. Chanbers reversed the
steircase and niw the etairs "invite you up instead of presenting their
inhospituble zosterior.”

Iivingston's opersaticns on the house were not entirely corfined to

the addition of a «ing totullv cut o harwony vith the old ons. He

consolideted all the dormer windows in the roof of the old farrhouse

go;Doﬁr.
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into one contimious front which guve the appearance of' & t ird story, A-

and ruined the gruzce of the old roof line. _'Tbe originel design has -
besn restored.

The present owmer thus succesded in rejuvenating the "tunhle-down
sntigue' into & coufortable nodern dwelling with all the necessary
present-day equipment of plumbing, beatirg snd lightirg, while yres-
erving the structuré's historie and artistie wvulue. The kitehen wing,
together with & modarn gurage with children's playrooa in its second
story, connecting with the house by un enclosed bridge or runway, 1is
entirely modarn. The ertire roof is cover:d with asbestos shingles
over old wooden onss.

—. The architects of the vresent survey observe thatl the front or
newer (.estern) part of the residence dates from & period of uore row
fined developmert in social life and tuste. its delicucy wnd sophis-
ticetion are fur in +dvance of the nomespun simplicity of the earlier
nart. This is ghown hy the slender fluted coluwns, by window casings
mouldad instead of plain, wnd by cornices enriched with modillions und
g wand of lacae-like curvings. The west front is coveraed .sith narrow
clapboirds, and the scule of this entire faugade is ramurkably fine.
The original cellinpgs here were plasterad and enriched with plaster
ornuients. Contrusting with the great srimitive Tirenlace in the
orizipal old phr@ 2f the btouse are the jmore refined fireplaces in the
drawing room snd dining roow of this new part, their eighteesnth cen~
tury hlack-snd-gold wrbhle suntels huaving been procured i'rom a bouse of
the suse period on Bowling Green, Hew York City, and installed as the

newr west wing was bullding.
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BDobbs Ferry was on the so=cillad Teutrsl Zround during the
gavolution, snd strong redoubts ﬂere'erasﬁg near the old Philipse

fari:house to Aominate fron this comuanding site the ferry mgd the

wing on the river.

Fictorial Field-Book of the Levolution,
763,

Breiting events or zlaras occasionally occcurred al.ost within sight und
hear ing of the occupants of the house. The region wss the hang-oud

of nmeursudsrs froc both armi=s, ard the Piret pension grunted in the
Urited Colonies was given to & boy na.ed Vincent, the survivor of

three voung men residing in the village wio were terribly sutilated by
Tory Cowboys”

geharf, ist »f Yestchrester Co., 1886, I1: 184.

Lossing was unfortun: tely irn er or, however, botkh in his

Pictorial Field-Book aznd in The ::dron (1BAG),
. 358,

vwher he otaied that Yashipiton nhud his heuwdiuarters wt this house toward

the a2loze of' the “evolution; wnd thut, ir Tovenbar, 1783, “‘ushington,

Goverror Clinton, and the British somsander Hir Guy Carleton et there
"to corfer uor the subjects of .risoners, +the loyalists, wnd the eva~
cuatior of the city of Few York by the British forces."  Echarf
feiz2d ahove, Vol. Ti, p. 188} 11506 says that Vas ir stor and Carl: ton
wel there, on may 3, 1783, "to seitle terus Tor ithe dishiunduent of the
vo armics." e “oes so fir as to declirs tut "Teo spoi should asver

e held in horored remembrunce as the birthplauce of the United States.”

r

relying robubly or these distinguiried wothorities, the Sons of the

Revolutior srrcted in 18894 u suall monuuent by the csdside in frontg
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of the house to commenorste that event.

Gvidence begun to appear thret Toseing wwmat have placed confidence.

in neizhborhoed hearsay irather than ir docuaentsry proof'. i descendunt

of Vun Brugh Livingston who had Imown thuot former sroprietor personally
wrote thot she had never heard hiw say that the house had been
viaghiogiton's headguarterc.

Yag. of Am. Miat., VII: 145, 373.

Shonnwtd & Spoonser, in their

Hist. of Westchest»r County (1900),
pPp. 922-HZ3,

oresented uore tungible und sonvinecing testimony: "Since the ersction.
of the Dohbs Terry mornwient it hus been sstablished by indis-utuble
evidence that the .cemorable reeting of Tashington wnd Curletorn did not
occur in the "ivingston house or ut Nobiue Ferry, but wt Tappun
(Oranzetosn) on the opposite side of the river."  They citad an article
enp this point by re Dunisel Van lussel, of Turrytown, ublishsd irn the
Tarrytown

Apugs Tor llsrch Z3, 1895,

"

in shieh he reluted the Pivdinz, i the cellsetisn ot the Van Cortlundt
‘anor liouse, of a long Tellsr vritten by Col. glchavd Varick, dstad Hay
18, 1783, deseribirg the seeting of Jash'ngton and Curl®ton in Tappan

phieh ve hinsell wttendad ws aide fo Governor (¢linton. The Varick

letter Lud slready been . ublisted ten vaars earlier in the

fage of Auw. fist.e, AIV: 513 {iov., 1R885).

This subject is more fully develnped, with additicenal und co-nlusive
docuusentury proof, by Lr. Jillium 5. Hadawey, in an article ertitled
"pobbs Ferry in the Hevolutioen," sublished in

The uuarterly Bulletin of the “iestchester Co.
Tist. coC., Vol. JL11, pp. 114-121 (July, 1932).
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The 1834 vornusent also rcorrectly alleges thai rashington and |-

Rohhambaau met ut this house to-piaq the Yorictown Cunpeion in 1781,
s exnlaived apthoritatively in otvher yrticles in the
: ELli],etin for July, 1932,
above citad, there comnanders of the allied arwies ocrupied the
Avpelby and Odell houses respectively on courtry roads ek in ihe
kille, and conveniently held their confsre:css thare surrourded by their

Ernons.

Written, Murch 28, 1334, by

s CHIolatdcia

Thoums %. Fotchkiss
118 Pire 8t., Peskskill, u. Y.

Aloroved: . 193)3913)(’—

Bt 1736, #.F



Location:

Present Qwner

and Occupant:

Architectural

Changes:
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MESSMORE KENDALL HOUSE

An asddendum %o
Messmore Kendall House
Dobbs Ferry, New York
in HABS Catalog (1941)

East side of Broadway at Dobbs Ferry., Westchester
County, New York

Ferdinand Gottlieb

House demolished November 1974

Information provided by: John Zukowsky
Architectural Historian
Hudson River Museum
Yonkers, New York 10701
March 1975
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